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To:   Auburn Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Planning and Permitting 
 
Re:   Appeal of K. Alexander Visbaras, Esq. a representative for Aghra Capall LLC and Gary 

McFarland, sole member of the mentioned LLC. is appealing for a variance from the 10 
acre minimum lot size requirement of the Agriculture and Resource Protection District.  
The intent of the appeal is to allow relief from the lot size requirement to allow for the 
maintenance and improvement of the existing residence and agricultural structures at 
1863 Pownal Road, PID# 021-001 pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XV of the City of 
Auburn Zoning Ordinance.  

 
 

Date: March 30, 2017 
   
AUTHORITY/JURISDICTION 

The Board has jurisdiction to hear Variance Appeals under Section 60-1187, Variance, which 

reads as follows: 

(a) The board of appeals may grant a variance from the dimensional regulations and 
supplementary district regulations contained in the zoning chapter where the strict 
application of the ordinance, or a provision thereof, to the petitioner or property would 
cause undue hardship based on:  

(1) The land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless the variance is granted; 

(2) The need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not to 
the general conditions in the neighborhood;  

(3) The granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the locality; and  

(4) The hardship is not the result of action taken by the appellant or a prior owner. 

 (b) In addition to the criteria in this section, in determining whether or not to grant a variance, 
the board shall also take into consideration the following:  

(1) Fire, electrical and police safety requirements; 

(2) The adequacy of the traffic circulation system in the immediate vicinity; 

(3) The availability of an adequate water supply; 
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(4) The availability of adequate sewerage facilities; 

(5) Would not violate the environmental standards or criteria contained in the Overlay 
Zoning Districts;  

(6) Would not adversely affect property adjoining the premises under appeal or nearby in 
the same neighborhood or in the same zoning district;  

(7) Would not endanger the public health, safety or convenience; and 

(8) Would not impair the integrity of the zoning chapter. 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
The City of Auburn has received a request from K. Alexander Visbaras, Esq. a representative for 
Aghra Capall LLC and Gary McFarland, sole member of the mentioned LLC. is appealing for a 
variance from the 10 acre minimum lot size requirement of the Agriculture and Resource 
Protection (AGRP) District.  The intent of the appeal is to allow relief from the lot size 
requirement to allow for the maintenance and improvement of the existing residence and 
agricultural structures at 1863 Pownal Road, PID# 021-001 pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XV of 
the City of Auburn Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The home was originally constructed around 1900 and is legally existing.    The Minimum lot 
size in the AGRP zoning district is 10 Acres.  The attached petition and request for appeal details 
how the lot size violation happened and the current situation.  
Staff believes that the homeowner and financial institutions 
relying on the described parcels for security on the loans fully 
intended to comply with the ordinance and retain legal 10 
acre parcels in the event of foreclosure; There is no evidence 
of any incentive on the part of the owner or a previous owner 
to intentionally describe a parcel that would be illegal in the 
event of a foreclosure.  The variance request is for the 
minimum lot size to be reduced to 8 acres.  The parcel is 
described in the deed recorded at the Androscoggin County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 9422, Page 216 and according to a 
recent survey is 8.02 acres.   
 
It is common in our rural areas to have a residential zone 
“strip” along existing roads with agricultural zone on the rear 

LDRR Zone 

1863 Pownal 
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land.  Currently the residential strip in this area is Low Density Rural Residence (LDRR) and ends 
on the abutting parcel.  The property owner, City Council, Planning Board and Staff recently 
worked to process a zoning amendment suggested by two City Councilors.  Staff recommended 
approval of the amendment and there seems to be wide support for saving the historic home, 
however, the vote of the Planning Board and Council each failed by close votes.   
 
Section 60-40. Of the City Ordinances states in part that “No lot (except as allowed by the 
planning board at the time of final approval of a subdivision or development plan) shall be 
reduced, subdivided, conveyed, divided or otherwise transferred that violates, or creates a lot 
that violates, any minimum or maximum dimensional regulation of this chapter.” It further 
states building permits cannot be issued to any of the land so transferred or to the land 
retained until all of such land or lots are in conformance with all dimensional regulations. The 
one exception is to resolve a serious health or safety issue with the property.  Based on that 
provision, the zoning ordinance prohibits the City from issuing any permits for the repair, 
regular improvements and maintenance of the structures while a violation of the lot size 
requirement exists.  From the beginning, staff recommended that the two property owners 
work together to swap land to correct the lot size violation; this option has been pursued by the 
current and previous owners and an agreement has proven to be unreachable.  Now faced with 
the continued deterioration of the home as a likely outcome the owner has applied for a 
variance from the lot size standard as a last resort.  If a variance is granted, it would resolve the 
lot size violation and allow for the existing home to be maintained and improved; it would not 
allow for any further development of additional homes.      
 
The application details how the appellant believes the situation qualifies for a variance.   
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the following findings: 
 

1. Unless the variance is granted by the City, the owner cannot obtain a permit for repair, 
improvement or maintenance of the existing structures.  Without repair and improvement the 
property will continue to deteriorate and the property cannot yield a reasonable return.   
 

2. The need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the property and not to the 
general conditions in the neighborhood.  There is an established residentially zoned strip of 
land in the area that stops on the abutting parcel and excludes this parcel.   There is an 
established residential development pattern along Pownal Road that includes the subject 
parcel.  This is the only home within the established pattern that is not residentially zoned in 
the immediate area.  If the residential strip continued for one additional parcel, this would not 
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be an issue and permits could be issued.  The circumstances are unique to this property and the 
variance will allow the existing home to be maintained as it has been for over 100 years.   

 
3. The granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the locality as the structure 

will remain in the current location and could be appropriately maintained.  This variance will 
preserve the existing character of the home and neighborhood and prevent the negative 
impacts to surrounding property values associated with deteriorated or vacant homes.    

 
4. The hardship is not the result of action taken by the appellant or a prior owner.  The applicant 

has demonstrated the hardship is not the result of action taken by the appellant or a prior 
owner. Evidence presented shows that the situation likely could not have been prevented by 
the appellant or the prior owners and was caused by foreclosure actions of others beyond their 
control.    

 
5. The property is not located in the Shoreland zone.   

 
6. In addition to the criteria in this section, in determining whether or not to grant a variance, the 

board has also taken  into consideration the following and found that the proposal meets the 
requirements:  
 

(1) Fire, electrical and police safety requirements; No Impact. 

(2) The adequacy of the traffic circulation system in the immediate vicinity; No Impact. 

(3) The availability of an adequate water supply; The existing well will continue to serve 
the structures.   

(4) The availability of adequate sewerage facilities; The structure is served by a legally 
existing subsurface wastewater disposal system.     

(5) Would not violate the environmental standards or criteria contained in the Overlay 
Zoning Districts;  

(6) Would not adversely affect property adjoining the premises under appeal or nearby in 
the same neighborhood or in the same zoning district;  

(7) Would not endanger the public health, safety or convenience; and 

(8) Would not impair the integrity of the zoning chapter. 

 
Based on the above findings, staff recommends approving the variance as requested. 











































































         
         
         
         
         
         

           
 March 28, 2017 

 
Mr. Kim Visbaras, esq. 
c/o Visbaras Law, LLC 
195 Center Street 
Auburn, Maine 04210 
 
re: Aghra Capall, LLC Property - 1863 Pownal Road - Auburn, Maine 
 
Dear Mr. Visbaras: 
 
 At your request, with regards to the area of the property located at 1863 Pownal Road, 
Auburn, ME., I've reviewed and reaffirmed that the approximate area of the Aghra Capall, 
LLC parcel and concluded that the total area with the parcel as described in the deed recorded 
at the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds in Book 9422, Page 216 is 8.02 acres. 
 

 Should you have any questions, feel free to give me a call at either of the following 
numbers: office = 689-3232, cell = 240-5567. 
  
       Respectfully yours, 

        
       George S. Bouchles, PLS 2295 
         
 

586 Park Avenue - Auburn, Maine 04210 
office - 207-689-3232  cell - 207-240-5567 
e-mail - gsb@cadmasterr.com  CADmaster 
Land Surveying and Septic Design 
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